
Meeting of:  Integrated Commissioning Board
Date: Tuesday, 26th June, 2018
Time: 3.30 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside - Number One 
Riverside

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 4 - 9

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Integrated 
Commissioning Board held 29th May 2018. (3.30pm – 3.40pm)

6.  NORTH EAST SECTOR CLINICAL SERVICES STRATEGY 

Public Document Pack



Northern Care Alliance NHS Group to present (3.40pm – 4.15pm)

7.  DECOMMISSIONING STRATEGY 10 - 25

Karen Kenton to report (4.15pm – 4.30pm)

8.  UPDATE ON COMMUNICATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 
TO SUPPORT THE TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME 

26 - 47

Strategic Commissioning Programme Director (HMR CCG) to report 
(4.30pm – 4.40pm) 

9.  TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME - HIGHLIGHTS REPORT 48 - 63

To consider the Transformation Highlights report - Strategic 
Commissioning Programme Director (HMR CCG) to report. (4.40pm – 
4.50pm) 

10.  OUTCOMES BASED COMMISSIONING FRAMEWORK 

Director of Public Health to present (4.50pm – 5.05pm)

11.  HEALTHY LIFESTYLE EXPECTANCY 

Director of Public Health to present (5.05pm – 5.15pm)

12.  HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE POOL BUDGET REPORT - PERIOD 2 
(MAY)  2018/19 

64 - 69

Chief Finance Officer to report (5.15pm – 5.30pm)

Integrated Commissioning Board Members:
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Dr Bodrul Alam
Councillor Allen Brett Graham Burgess 
Denise Dawson Dr Chris Duffy
Councillor Kieran Heakin Paul Hinnigan
Councillor Sara Rowbotham

For more information about this meeting please contact:
Peter Thompson
Governance and Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk
Telephone: 01706 924715

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk




INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 29 May 2018

PRESENT: Graham Burgess (Independent Chair); HMR CCG: Dr Bodrul 
Alam (Clinician), Dr Chris Duffy (Clinical Lead), Denise Dawson (Lay 
Member), P. Hennigan (Lay Member).
RBC: Councillor Brett (Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Finance), 
Councillor Rowbotham (Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing), Councillor 
Iftikhar Ahmed (Portfolio Holder for Adult Care), Councillor Heakin (Portfolio 
Holder for Children’s Services).

OFFICERS:  HMR CCG: K. Hurley (Deputy Chief Officer and Executive 
Nurse) J. Evans, S. Barrett.  
RBC: S. McIvor (Director of Commissioning), N. Thornton (Director of 
Resources), V. Bradshaw (Chief Finance Officer), A. Fallon (Director of Public 
Health), W. Meston (Consultant in Public Health) and M. Garraway 
(Governance & Committee Services) 

Also in Attendance:   S. Taylor (Chief Officer Northern Care Alliance Bury & 
Rochdale and Chief Officer of the Local Care Organisation); one member of 
public.

APOLOGIES
1 Apologies were received from S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive RBC) G. 
Hopper (Director of Children’s Services – RBC), S. Wotton, S. Evans (HMR 
CCG).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
2 There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES
3 Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting of the Integrated 
Commissioning Board held on 10th April 2018 be approved as a correct 
record.

LOCAL CARE ORGANISATION (LCO) BUSINESS PLAN
4 The Board received a presentation from the Chief Officer Northern 
Care Alliance (NCA) Bury & Rochdale; and Chief Officer of the Local Care 
Organisation (LCO) which provided details of the agreed governance structure 
for the LCO and the progress achieved on transformation schemes.  The 
Board were informed that the LCO had agreed a thematic group focus on 
Mental Health for 2018/19.

Members of the Board welcomed a significant improvement in recruitment and 
workforce retention.  

Resolved:

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



1. The Chief Officer Northern Care Alliance Bury & Rochdale; and Chief 
Officer of the Local Care Organisation report quarterly to the Integrated 
Commissioning Board detailing progress and non-compliance issues 
arising. 

2. A decision making framework for the LCO, identifying timescales for 
delivery, be brought to the July meeting of the Integrated Commissioning 
Board.   

HEALTHY LIFE EXPECTANCY
5 The Board received a presentation from the Consultant in Public Health 
(RBC) detailing key statistical information relating to healthy life expectancy 
across the Borough and analysis against the Authorities statistical neighbours 
and other Greater Manchester Authorities.

Resolved:
That a report be brought to the next meeting of the Integrated Commissioning 
Board identifying two or three priority areas where resources should be 
focussed and from which projects funding should be diverted.   

OVER THE COUNTER PRESCRIBING MEDICINES - VERBAL UPDATE
6 The Board received an update from the Deputy Chief Officer and 
Executive Nurse (CCG) following the guidance issued by NHS England 
(NHSE) and NHS Clinical Commissioners on 29th March 2018 on the 
outcomes of a consultation exercise on prescribing at NHS expense for self-
limiting conditions or minor illness which were suitable for self-care.  

The Board were informed formal guidance from the British Medical 
Association was that patients must be put first, in fulfilling contracts and 
progressing NHSE guidance.

A Member expressed concerns and sighted the example of the purchase 
costs of over the counter paracetamol when compared to the same item being 
prescribed by a GP.

Resolved:
1. Councillor Sara Rowbotham, Dr Chris Duffy and Andrea Fallon (Director of 

Public Health – RBC) be appointed to the Prescribing Medicines Sub-
Group. 

2. The Sub-Group report to a future meeting of the Integrated Commissioning 
Board advising on best practice from other Local Authorities/CCG’s and 
whether there is a need to make further representation to NHSE, Members 
of Parliament and other bodies.

TRANSFORMATION PERFORMANCE REPORT
7 The Board considered a report of the Transformation Director updating 
Members on matters arising from performance reports to previous meetings.

Resolved:
1. Reports submitted to the Integrated Commissioning Board be undertaken 

in accordance with the statutory requirements of reporting to Council 

Page 5



Committees providing a recommendation, alternative options and key 
points for consideration.

2. Reports responding to matters raised at previous meetings be submitted in 
a timely manner to enable consideration at the next appropriate meeting of 
the Board.   

3. Transformation Performance reports be considered bi-monthly.

TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME - HIGHLIGHTS REPORT
8 The Board considered a report of the Transformation Director which 
provided Members with an update on the following: (a) Finance – describing 
current status and the impact of any financial risks on the programme; (b) 
Programme Delivery – new reporting system starts to describe delivery 
supported by an intervention recovery process; (c ) Local Care Organisation – 
general update; and (d) Risk – a look at the quarterly “business as usual” risk 
submitted to the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership 
(GMH&SCP) meeting for the period. The overall rating of the programme for 
this period was Amber.

Resolved:
1. That the report be noted.
2. Transformation programme highlights reports to future meetings focus on 

the issues identified as red within the RAG rating providing detail around 
the areas for concern.

TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME - REVIEW OF 2017/18
9 The Board considered a report of the Director of Commissioning 
outlining the progress to date on the journey to a single commissioning 
function, Local Care Organisation development and transformation including 
the local successes and challenges in delivering this agenda.

Resolved: 
1. That the report be noted.
2. The action plan be updated to include completion dates for all actions.
3. Further reports be submitted to Integrated Commissioning Board meetings 

detailing a communication plan of successes. 

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BETTER CARE FUND FINAL OUTTURN 
REPORT 2017/18
10 The Board considered a report of the Chief Finance Officer setting out 
the final position of the Better Care Fund for the financial year 2017/18.  

Alternatives considered:
No alternatives were considered as it is a requirement of the National Health 
Service for England (NHSE) to produce a budget for 2017/18 which the 
Integrated Commissioning Board approved at the May 2017 meeting. 
Monitoring of the budget is a requirement of the Section 75 agreement which 
was approved at the September 2017 Integrated Commissioning Board 
meeting, and the year-end figures are reported to NHSE as part of year-end 
returns.

Page 6



Resolved:
1. That The BCF return submitted on the 20th April under delegation from the 

Integrated Commissioning Board be noted.
2. That the current balance in the VAT provision of £401.6k be reviewed at a 

future meeting of the Integrated Commissioning Board.
3. That the delay in some of the capital projects agreed in September 2017 

be noted.

Reason for resolution:
Regular monitoring of the budget is a requirement of the Section 75 (S75) 
agreement and is a function of the Integrated Commissioning Board.

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BETTER CARE FUND REVISED BUDGET 
REPORT- 2018/19
11 The Board considered a report of the Chief Finance Officer seeking 
approval of the revised revenue and capital budgets for the Better Care Fund 
for 2018/19, an additional £125k protection of Adult Care Services to reduce 
the pooled gap by this amount in 2018/19 and approval of the spending plan 
for the 2018/19 DFG capital grant and the capital grant brought forward from 
2017/18.

Alternatives considered:
No alternatives were considered as it is a requirement of the NHSE guidance 
to produce a budget for 2018/19 which is a function of the Integrated 
Commissioning Board.

Resolved:
1. The revised revenue and capital budgets for the Better Care Fund for 

2018/19 be approved.
2. The additional £125k protection of Adult Care Services to reduce the 

pooled gap by this amount in 2018/19 be approved.
3. The revised capital DFG allocation for 2018/19 be noted.
4. The spending plan for the 2018/19 DFG capital grant and the capital grant 

brought forward from 2017/18 be approved.

Reason for resolution:
No alternatives were considered as it is a requirement of the National Health 
Service for England (NHSE) to produce a budget for 2018/19.

FINAL 2017/18 SHADOW POOLED BUDGET OUTTURN REPORT
12 The Board considered a report of the Chief Finance Officer updating 
the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on the final position of the shadow 
pooled budget for Health and Social Care for the financial year 2017/18.

Alternatives considered:
No alternatives were considered as it is a requirement of the National Health 
Service for England (NHSE) to produce and monitor the budget for 2017/18. 
Monitoring enables the early identification of variations against the plan and 
facilitates timely corrective action.

Page 7



Resolved:
1. That the final position for the shadow pooled budget for 2017/18 be noted.

Reason for resolution:
The operation of a shadow pooled budget for Health and Social Care was 
agreed at the Integrated Commissioning Board meeting in April 2017. This 
has formed the basis of the formal pooling of budgets between the two 
organisations in line with National Health Services England (NHSE) 
guidelines.

POOLED BUDGET SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2018/19
13 The Board considered a report of the Chief Finance Officer detailing 
the work undertaken to date on achieving the savings plan for 2018/19 and 
the on-going work to ensure that the savings target is met to enable the 
Pooled budget to break even.

Alternatives considered:
Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
saving programme. 

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

Reason for resolution:
Monitoring enables the early identification of variations against the plan and 
facilitates timely corrective action.

SECTION 75 REPORT - HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE POOLED FUND
14 The Board considered a report of the Chief Finance Officer updating on 
the progress made on the production of the Section 75 agreement for the 
Pooled Fund and seeking agreement for the Council and CCG to progress 
with the operation of the pooled fund from 1st April as if the formal Section 75 
was in place. It was reported that the Section 75 is now almost complete and 
will only be subject to minor changes arising from feedback from Legal / VAT 
officers. If the changes were only minor then it was recommended that final 
sign off of the Section 75 be delegated to the Pooled Fund Manager (Chief 
Finance Officer for Health & Social Care Integration). If the feedback on the 
legal / VAT issues required significant changes to the Section 75, it was 
recommended that a full report be brought back to the next meeting of the 
Integrated Commissioning Board on 26th June.

Alternatives considered:
The production of the Section 75 agreement is a statutory requirement 
therefore no alternatives were considered.  

Resolved:
That the final sign off of the Section 75 agreement be delegated to the Pooled
Fund Manager / Chief Finance Officer for Health & Social Care Integration 
once the Section 75 has been revised to reflect advice from Legal Services / 
VAT officers, if the changes don’t materially change the Section 75. If the 

Page 8



changes are material, then a further report should be brought to ICB on 26th 
June 2018 updating on these changes and asking for formal sign off of the 
Section 75 by Integrated Commissioning Board.

Reason for recommendation:
A Section 75 agreement is required for the operation of a Pooled Fund.

Page 9



Agenda Item

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting 26th June 2018
Portfolio Integrated Commissioning
Report Author Karen Kenton
Public/Private Document Public

Decommissioning Strategy

Executive Summary

1. Decommissioning is a part of the commissioning cycle, and should be 
undertaken in a planned way to make sure that the most effective services are 
delivered/commissioned making best use of our available resources. It is a 
spectrum of activity that can range from service redesign through to the full 
cessation of a service/contract.

It is important that we take a strategic approach to decommissioning to ensure 
that this is undertaken as part of a whole system approach to avoid the risks of 
unintended consequences or cost shunting across the system.

Within “Rochdale Borough Commissioning Strategy 2017-2021” we described 
our principles for decommissioning, and that decommissioning is a key 
element of transformation that can support investment in new service delivery 
models and realisation of efficiencies/savings.  This decommissioning strategy 
sets out how we will approach decommissioning in practice.

Recommendation

2. That ICB considers and approves the Rochdale Borough Decommissioning 
Strategy 2017-2021.  

Reason for Recommendation

3. The CCG and Local Authority are required to ensure that local services 
improve outcomes for our residents whilst making the best use of the available 
resources.  Within the context of integrated arrangements the 
decommissioning strategy provides a framework for undertaking 
decommissioning activity in a co-ordinated and systematic manner that 
acknowledges and fulfils the requirements of  both organisations. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 7



Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

This decommissioning strategy has been drafted following a review of national 
evidence/guidance and best practice elsewhere.  The strategy provides the 
following:

Definition: We have used the National Audit Office definition to describe what 
we mean by the term decommissioning:
Decommissioning is stopping provision of a service or a significant part of the 
service in order to bring about improvement to existing service provision.

An overview of the local context including the financial challenge and local 
transformation plan.

A description of our decommissioning principles ( previously approved by ICB 
and included in the Commissioning Strategy)

The criteria that we will apply to the evaluation of decommissioning proposals

A description of a cyclical decommissioning process which provides the 
framework for how we will undertake decommissioning, covering analysis, 
decision making and governance, contract management, communication and 
engagement, risk management and transitional arrangements.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no direct costs associated with the decision to approve/ratify the 
Decommissioning Strategy.  Decommissioning activity will be undertaken 
within existing resources as a natural part of the commissioning process. 

Risk and Policy Implications

6. There are numerous risks associated with decommissioning including but not 
exclusively:

 Loss/change to local service provision
 Unintended consequences for other providers/commissioners such as 

activity or cost shunting
 Destabilisation of providers
 Disproportionate impact of different groups of service users

This strategy will support the mitigation of the key risks associated with 
decommissioning across both organisations. 

Failure to decommission will reduce our ability to deliver the locality 
transformation plans by removing the mechanism by which we can disinvest 
in ineffective services to re-invest in new models of care, or to make savings 
to support management of the financial challenge.

Page 11



Consultation

7. Any decommissioning activity will be taken in full consultation with 
stakeholders as outline in the strategy document.

For Further Information Contact: Sally McIvor  
sally.mcivor@rochdael.gov.uk 
01706 924079
or
Karen Kenton
karen.kenton@rochdael.gov.uk 
01706 925167

Page 12

mailto:sally.mcivor@rochdael.gov.uk
mailto:karen.kenton@rochdael.gov.uk


Page 1 of 13

Rochdale Borough 
 Decommissioning Strategy 

2017- 2021
Stronger Starts- Secure Futures

Page 13



Page 2 of 13

Document Control 

Version Date Comments Author
0.1 05.02.2018 First draft drawing on review of 

practice/evidence elsewhere (CCGs 
and Las) for discussion with Sally 
McIvor

Karen Kenton

0.2 01.03.2018 Incorporating minor revisions from 
Charlotte Booth & feedback from 
ICD, additional content added

Karen Kenton

0.3 27.03.2018 Creation of document onto formal 
Council paper, additional content 
added.

Eleanor Roberts

0.4 15.05.2018 Formatting document Eleanor Roberts
0.5 06.06.18 Final draft for ratification Karen Kenton
0.6 06.06.18 Final amendments, contents, 

documents references
Eleanor Roberts

Page 14



Page 3 of 13

CONTENTS

WHAT AND WHY…………………………………………………………………………………...4
What is Decommissioning

Local Context

Decommissioning Principles

Our Criteria for Decommissioning

HOW………………………………………………………………………………………………….7
The Decommissioning Process

PREPARE……………………………………………………………………………………………8
Communications Plan

Risk Assessment

DECIDE……………………………………………………………………………………………....8
Identify

Market and Supplier Analysis

Resource Analysis

DO…………………………………………………………………………………………………….9
Project Plan

Transitional Arrangements

REVIEW……………………………………………………………………………………………..10
Supporting the Process

Governance

Appendix 1: Integrated Governance for Health and Care……………………………………...12

Page 15



Page 4 of 13

WHAT AND WHY

What is Decommissioning?

As we have described in our 
Commissioning Strategy  
decommissioning is a facet of 
commissioning and we will embed this as 
a fundamental element of our outcome 
based, collaborative commissioning 
approach.  

We have defined what we mean by 
decommissioning, using the National Audit 
Office’s definition 

 “decommissioning is stopping provision of 
a service or a significant part of a service 
in order to bring about improvement to 
existing service provision”.

Decommissioning is a part of the 
commissioning cycle, and should be 
undertaken in a planned way to make sure 
that the most effective services are 
delivered/commissioned making best use 
of our available resources. It is a spectrum 
of activity that can range from service 
redesign through to the full cessation of a 
service/contract.

We aim to ensure that our strategic 
decommissioning plans in relation to the 
local authority’s (LA) and the Clinical 
Commissioning Group’s (CCG) existing 
service arrangements are fully integrated 
with our commissioning plans for new 
integrated models of care as described in 
our transformation plan.

 Our current services are not 
delivering the desired outcomes for 
our residents

 Economic circumstances requiring  
the public sector to review, change 
and transform service provision

 A review of the needs of the 
population (e.g. through our Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment) and 
our current services indicates a 
need for services to be 
reconfigured

 Evaluations/service reviews 
demonstrate that a service does 
not provide value for money

 Performance management issues 
in a service cannot be resolved

 Changes to service delivery and 
improved early help result in 
reduced demand for other more 
specialist services 

 The personalisation of services 
and introduction of personal 
budgets leads to changes in 
demand for existing commissioned 
services

 Current services do not meet 
equality criteria or adhere to 
legislation 

Existing contracts end and the incumbent 
provider does not win the new contract

Why do we need to decommission?

There are many reasons why the LA and 
CCG may consider decommissioning 
existing services. These include:

Page 16



Page 5 of 13

Local Context

The LA and CCG have been challenged to 
develop transformation plans that aim to 
improve outcomes for our local population 
at the same time as reducing the costs 
associated with health, care and wider 
public sector services

Health and Social Care are facing 
unprecedented rises in demand which is 
out stripping available resources, and 
therefore we can no longer continue to do 
what we have always done.  Through the 
work in developing the local 
transformation fund bid and further 
refinement the LA and CCG are facing a 
“do nothing scenario” financial gap in the 
pooled fund of:

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£’000 £’000 £’000
19,619 24,602 31,297

We will need to consider decommissioning 
as a key element of our commissioning 
strategy, as a key enabler to allow us to 
disinvest in what is not working well to 
support re-investment in new delivery 
models as well as to make savings to 
reduce our financial gap.

In our Locality Transformation Plan we 
have set how we intend to transform and 
integrate our services so that our residents 
receive effective early help so they are 
better place to self-care/self-manage, and 
are able to avert/avoid escalations of need 
that currently result in the need for hospital 
care or other specialised services. The 
key vehicles for delivering new service 
delivery models are the Local Care 
Organisation and Family Services Model, 
which are identified as one of the pillars of 
transformation.  It is recognised that 
decommissioning activity – whether it be 
service re-design or full cessation of a 

service/disinvestment to reinvest to 
support new models of care is inevitable.

Equality Impact 

We are committed to promoting equality, 
diversity and human rights in everything 
that we do, in order to ensure that services 
are accessible, appropriate, developed 
and delivered based on the needs of local 
residents and stakeholders. We are 
committed to tackling inequalities in health 
and promoting equality in relation to age, 
caring responsibilities, disability, gender 
identity, marriage / civil partnerships, 
pregnancy / maternity, race, religion or 
belief, sex, sexual orientation and social 
class and will ensure that 
decommissioning decisions do not have 
direct or indirect adverse impact on 
protected groups. We have ensured that 
equality impact is built into our 
decommissioning cycle displayed on page 
7 and will include equality impact 
assessments as part of the evidence that 
informs all decommissioning decisions.

Decommissioning Principles 

When we are considering 
decommissioning we will work to the 
following principles that we have adapted 
from the National Audit Office

1. Good communication: we will be 
open, honest, and have regular 
and transparent engagement and 
consultation with service providers 
and users to help overcome any 
fear and mistrust that might arise 
between commissioners, providers 
and users.

2. Understand needs and the 
provider market; we will have a 
good understanding of users’ 
needs, the existing services that 
meet those needs and the wider 
provider market  when considering 

Page 17



Page 6 of 13

options, risks, impacts and effects 
on users and providers and to 
provide better value for money

3. Focus on users and the 
community; we will maintain a 
strong focus on users, not 
services, so that we ensure 
outcomes are met effectively and 
services are relevant in the long-
term.

4. Clear rationale: we will ensure that 
there is a consensus on the 
reasons why service change is 
needed so that key individuals and 
stakeholders can ‘own’ the process 
and outcomes, thus reducing 
mistrust from users and providers.

5. Understand impact: we will work to 
a robust process of impact 
analyses that looks at longer term 
‘whole-life’ impacts of services on 
users, providers and the wider 
community that can strengthen the 
case for change,  offer better value 
for money and  avoid shunting 
costs or demand across the 
system.

6. Focus on value for money; we will 
maintain a strong focus on 
securing value for money which 
protects outcomes whilst improving 
productivity and ensure better use 
of public resources.

7. Robust risk management: we will 
identify risks to the 
decommissioning process and to 
all stakeholders involved so that 
we can reduce any fear or anxiety 
and mitigate risks to value for 
money.

8. Understand costs: we will ensure 
that we have a clear understanding 
of what the current costs (and 

benefits/savings) of a service are 
and the potential future costs and 
benefits which will help with 
assessing value for money.

9. Good governance: we will have in 
place a clear, transparent decision 
making process within our 
governance structure that will allow 
all stakeholders to understand 
roles and responsibilities and will 
ensure a clear process for 
decommissioning.

Our Criteria for Decommissioning

The scale of savings required to narrow 
the financial gap within the Borough are 
significant and will be challenging to 
deliver.  It is very likely that we will have to 
make some difficult decisions in relation to 
the services that we provide, stopping 
some things that we are doing now, to 
allow us to invest in the new service 
delivery models that will improve 
outcomes and help us to achieve the level 
of deflections from crisis and specialist 
services that will help us to manage our 
health and care system in the long term.

We will evaluate any decommissioning 
proposals against the following criteria:

 Our JSNAs demonstrate that 
existing services are not meeting 
the needs of the local population

 Clear and objective reason for 
decommissioning of a service 
based on an assessment of 
performance, value for money and 
the need for service redesign to 
improve outcomes

 The provider is unable to 
demonstrate delivery against 
performance and outcome 
measures despite appropriate 
remedial action being taken

Page 18



Page 7 of 13

 Service does not deliver value for 
money (as demonstrated using 
financial review and appropriate 
tools where they are available)

 Investment in a service does not 
maximise the outcomes that could 
be achieved by reinvesting 
elsewhere

 The service is unsafe or of poor 
quality

 Disinvestment is required to 
narrow the Borough’s financial gap 
or to support reinvestment in new 
service delivery models 

HOW

The Decommissioning Process

Like commissioning, decommissioning is a cyclical process encompassing four broad 
stages.  We will apply the following process for all decommissioning activity: 

• Actual process of 
decommissioning service 
including communications and 
ensuring smooth transitional 
arrangments

• Lessons learnt  to apply to 
future decommissioning, 
performance management 
and service review, including 
service user feedback

• decision making process inc 
consideration of services 
needed, financil implications, 
contractual restrictions, 
consultaion stakeholders & 
service users

• Ensuring the right 
environment, includig 
policies,processes and right 
levels of expertise

Prepare Decide

DoReview

Page 19



Page 8 of 13

PREPARE

It is critical that we are clear about the 
extent to which our currently 
commissioned services are delivering the 
intended outcomes, providing optimal 
value for money and how they support our 
transformation and service integration 
plans.  This is essential to inform decision 
making as to whether or not a service if fit 
for purpose or if it should be 
decommissioned. We will ensure the 
following:

robust contract management:

 Put in place well-defined 
specifications for services that are 
clear in outlining expected 
outcomes, and the mechanisms 
that are in place for managing any 
changes that may be required.

 Agree with providers the criteria 
and a framework for possible 
future commissioning – doing this 
early may prevent difficulties later 

 when reconfiguration may be 
required.

 Performance monitoring and 
evaluation processes – so that we 
have the data and intelligence 
available that will help us to 
determine how well a service is 
delivering it’s outcomes, and that 
can subsequently inform potential 
decommissioning decisions.

Communications Plan

Any potential changes to service provision 
will affect service users, the LA/CCG and 
service providers. We will engage, consult 
and keep informed a wide range of 
stakeholders including

 Service users 
 Providers (including their staff)
 Internal LA/CCG staff 
 Neighbouring LAs/CCGs where 

our decisions may impact 
 Elected members and clinical 

leads
 The wider public and media

Risk Assessment

It is important that we are aware of the 
risks and likely impact of potential 
decommissioning decisions/activity, and 
ensure that we take appropriate action to 
mitigate these. The risks associated with 

decommissioning are not necessarily 
limited to the loss or change to the 
service(s) being decommissioned. There 
may be other impacts such as unintended 
consequences for other 
providers/commissioners and the shift of 
demand/cost to another part of the 
system, destabilisation of the provider, 
disproportionate impact on different 
groups of service users. These will 
identified and mitigated though robust 
impact assessment, including equality 
impact.

We will document and manage risk 
through our integrated risk management 
arrangements, using the integrated care 
risk matrix as a tool to help assess and 
manage the risks associated with 
decommissioning. 

DECIDE

This stage sets out the approach to 
making a decision about a particular 
service, and will include consideration of 
what services are needed, what are the 
financial implications, and whether there 
are any contractual restrictions or 
requirements.

Identify 

We will complete a review of the 
population’s needs (through Joint 

Page 20



Page 9 of 13

Strategic Needs Assessment) and explore 
what services/service models are required 
to meet them. 

Market and Supplier Analysis – 
undertaken to assess the capacity and 
ability of the market to identify and 
implement potential alternative service 
delivery models (we have described how 
we intend to integrate and transform 
services within our Commissioning 
Strategy (2017-21), and the potential 
availability of new providers in the market.

Resource Analysis – includes an 
assessment of the resources that we have 
available to us (e.g. people, finance, 
providers).  This will be completed within 
the context of our locality plan, and the 
requirement to narrow the financial gap 
and create a sustainable heath and care 
system.

Through our analysis and review we will 
objectively assess the effectiveness, 
appropriateness and affordability of our 
existing services and how these fit with 
our local strategic commissioning 
priorities, to inform our future 
commissioning intentions and 
decommissioning decision making.

We will consult with both providers and 
service users on any decommissioning 
decisions in line with local policy and 
contract procedures.

DO

This element of the cycle is the actual 
process of decommissioning a service and 
includes the need to plan carefully and 
communicate effectively with the range of 
stakeholders to ensure smooth transitional 
arrangements. We will work closely with 
service providers to plan and prepare 
decommissioning of a service to minimise 
risk and disruption to service delivery 

ensuring that service users experience as 
minimal disruption as possible.

Project Plan 

We will identify a lead officer to develop 
and implement a plan for all 
decommissioning projects detailing key 
milestones, timescales (in line with 
contractual requirements), and will 
include:

 Transition and mobilisation (if 
applicable) arrangements, 
considering the needs of service 
users and any data protection or 
safeguarding issues

 A Communication Plan for all 
stakeholders

 Financial plan detailing the costs 
associated with decommissioning 
and how resources are released 
during the process and how they 
will be used (savings or re-
investment).

 Any contractual issues relating to 
the service – e.g. buildings, assets, 
staff

 Equalities Impact Assessment 
covering the impact/unintended 
consequences of decommissioning 
on vulnerable groups and 
protected characteristics.

Transitional Arrangements 

Will be agreed with the provider and 
tailored to the individual contract but 
the following will be required:

 Continuation of agree service 
standards and service delivery with 
particular regard to service users

 Timescales
 Information transfer/sharing with 

commissioners or new service 
providers

 Arrangements from staff 
involvement/redeployment as 

Page 21



Page 10 of 13

required including TUPE 
considerations

 A plan for commissioners and 
provider to respond to media or 
public enquiries

 Arrangement for any financial 
settlements sat the end of the 
contract

If there has been a re-tendering process 
and the incumbent provider was not 
successful we will actively work with 
providers to pre-empt and manage 
potential risks such as:

 A backlog of service users, that 
transfer to the new provider and 
may negatively  impact on their 
service delivery plans/performance

 Destabilisation of the workforce, 
should staff not wish to transfer to 
the new service provider

 Complaints from service users who 
may not want to change services

REVIEW

We will include a review process as part of 
our decommissioning process to ensure 
that we apply lessons learnt to inform 
future work. We want to ensure that the 
processes that we have in place for 
decommissioning are robust and effective.  
Where possible we will work with the 
stakeholders who have been involved with 
the process to test whether:

 There was sufficient preparation 
for decommissioning activity in 
place

 Our decision making process was 
appropriate and effective

 The right level of communication 
was applied at each stage of the 
process and we dealt with any 
communication difficulties 
effectively.

 We had sufficient support in place 
(for both decision making and the 
actual decommissioning of the 
service)

 Were there any barriers that got in 
the way of implementing the 
process

Supporting the Process

Decommissioning is a complex process 
and will require support from a range of 
functions to enable each phase of the 
decommissioning cycle to be implemented 
comprehensively.  Matrix teams including, 
but not restricted to the following, will be 
established to support each 
decommissioning process:

 Lead Members and CCG clinical 
leads

 Commissioners
 Finance
 Strategic Intelligence
 Performance
 Contracts
 Legal
 Communications and engagement
 Quality and safeguarding
 Provider/service managers 

Governance

All decommissioning decisions will be 
made through our integrated 
commissioning  governance arrangements 
via the Integrated Commissioning Board  
(Appendix 1).

Page 22



Page 11 of 13

REFERENCE

Reference Source 
RBC Commissioning Strategy 
2017-2021
Locality Plan https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/index.php/getinvolved/rochdale-

borough-locality-plan
GM Commissioning Framework

RBC Corporate Plan http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2016-08-02-place-plan-
2016-2021-v3.pdf

Rochdale Outcome Based 
Commissioning Framework
Finance and Payment Approach 
for ACO’s (NHSE 2017)

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2016/12/1693_DraftMCP-7_A.pdf

Decommissioning 
Toolkit (National Audit Office)

https://www.nao.org.uk/favicon.ico

GM Maternity Transformation 
Plan
Rochdale Borough Joint 
Commissioning Strategy for 
Children & Young People with 
Autism
Rochdale Borough Health & Well-
Being Strategy

Clinical and Professional 
Advisory Committee

CCG 

In Hospital 
Urgent Care 
Partnership 

Transformation Delivery 

Page 23

https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/index.php/getinvolved/rochdale-borough-locality-plan
https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/index.php/getinvolved/rochdale-borough-locality-plan
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2016-08-02-place-plan-2016-2021-v3.pdf
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2016-08-02-place-plan-2016-2021-v3.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/12/1693_DraftMCP-7_A.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/12/1693_DraftMCP-7_A.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/favicon.ico


Page 12 of 13

Appendix 1: Integrated Governance for Health and Care

Cabinet CCG 

Health and Wellbeing Board

ICB

LCO Board 

North East Sector 

Transformation Delivery 

Clinical and Professional 
Advisory Committee

Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

RBSAB 
RBSCB

Family 
Service’s 

Model 
Partnership 

Mental 
Health 

Partnership 

Neighbourhood 
and Primary 

Care 
Partnership 

Access and 
Prevention 
Partnership 

In Hospital 
Planned Care 
Partnership

In Hospital 
Urgent Care 
Partnership

P
age 24



13

Page 13 of 13
Page 25



 

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

 Date of Meeting: 26th June 2018  
Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing  
Report Author : Alison Mitchell, Danny Brierley  
Public/Private Document: Public  

 

 
Update on Communications and engagement activities to support the 
transformation programme  
 

Executive Summary 
 
1. A communications and engagement plan has been developed to support the 

three pillars of the Rochdale Transformation programme: 
 
 • Development of a single commissioning function 

• Development of the Local Care Organisation 
• Delivery of Transformation 

 
This paper provides an update on progress against the plan and includes a 
summary of activities completed and an outline of future work. 
 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. To note the contents of the report 
 

Reason for Recommendation 
 
3.  Report provided for information only to update members on progress  

 
 

Key Points for Consideration 
 
4.   
Background  
 
In January 2018 a communications and engagement plan was drafted to support 
the Rochdale transformation programme. The plan describes the core activities 

 
 
 

 

Page 26

Agenda Item 8



that would be undertaken to include our communities and stakeholders in 
dialogue about the transformation programme and to raise awareness and 
support for the transformational workstreams. This plan has been updated to 
reflect current activity and is provided in Appendix 1 to this report. 
 
The plan contains a series of core narratives that have been commonly used to 
describe various aspects of the programme. It also describes the approaches and 
activities to be used to support the three strands of transformation; developing an 
integrated commissioning organisation, developing a local care organisation and 
implementing the transformation workstreams.  
 
This report provides an update on the activities that have been undertaken to 
support the programme and a summary of upcoming measures to be 
implemented in coming months. 
 
 
Developing an integrated commissioning organisation 
 
Summary of progress to date 
 
Closer working of relevant council and CCG teams continues, with increased 
collaboration between the communications and engagement teams and other 
teams on joint projects. There is increased synergy in the sharing of relevant 
systems and common messages internally to staff across both organisations. A 
number of joint staff events have been held where staff were updated on the 
transformation process and the potential impact on their functions moving forward 
into an integrated commissioning organisation. 
 
A single leadership team oversees the strategic direction of the council and CCG 
commissioning functions. This team adopted a name and strapline for the 
transformation programme to replace reference to Rochdale Locality Plan as 
below; 
 
Better Lives  
Strong starts – secure futures 
A plan to transform health, care and wellbeing in the borough of Rochdale 
 
Significant work, described in previous 6 monthly review reports to ICB, continues 
to improve the alignment of the two commissioning organisations. A single 
accountable officer in July will further embed this practically and culturally.  
 
Summary of future work  
 
The council and CCG are continuing to communicate their own priorities which 
are linked to the overarching integrated commissioning project.  
 
For example, the council communications team has been helping to recruit staff to 
adult services roles and promoting the Discharge to Assess and Short Term 
Reablement and Support Service (STARS). They have also helped to raise the 
profile of the Carers Hub (79 per cent of carers have reported improved access to 
information) and also developed a new newsletter for healthcare services in the 

Page 27



borough on behalf of the Local Care Organisation (LCO) – Neighbourhood News, 
which goes to providers and volunteers operating within the borough of Rochdale. 
New literature for the supported living, residential care, and extra care services 
has also been developed.  
 
Examples of  CCG work are the continued promotion of service developments 
and innovations in primary care and within the rest of the local NHS. Examples 
are promotion of blood testing in practices to reduce ineffective antibiotic 
prescribing, promotion of the new pain management service and promotion of a 
new health care support service provided by volunteer GPs and practitioners for 
the homeless in Rochdale.  
 
There will be further alignment of messages internally to staff and stakeholders as 
well as externally as an integrated Communications and Engagement Strategy for 
the integrated commissioning organisation develops.  
 
Jon Rouse and other Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership 
colleagues will be in Number One Riverside, Rochdale on 15th June 2018, at a 
Devo Difference event which will highlight the local successes that have been 
enabled through the local transformation funds.    
 
Developing a local care organisation 
 
Summary of progress to date 
 
The Local Care Organisation was established on 1 April 2018 and a series of staff 
engagement and stakeholder events took place as part of the launch process. A 
naming and branding workshop led to the adoption of an identity;  
 
One Rochdale Health & Care 
Caring. Co-operative. Community 
 
Work is already under way to establish and launch communications mechanisms 
to allow the organisation to communicate effectively with its staff and 
stakeholders.  
 
Support from the Council communications team was made available during the 
set up phase. One edition of a neighbourhood newsletter has been dispatched to 
raise awareness of work to date and early wins.  (NB this as an appendix to this 
report) 
 
Summary of future work  
 
A partnership of the communications resource of the provider partners has been 
aligned to bolster any dedicated LCO resource.  
 
 
Implementing the transformation workstreams 
 
Summary of progress to date 
 

Page 28



As part of the process of engagement for the transformation agenda since 
January , several local venues have been visited to inform and raise awareness 
with local people about proposed and on-going developments to health and social 
care.  
 
Sherrif Street sheltered housing complex, the Lighthouse project, Croft Shifa 
Health Centre, Spotland Methodist Church, Milnrow Co-op, Littleborough Co-op, 
Kirkholt Community Church , Meadowfields Community Centre and Rochdale 
Town Hall have all been venues for this outreach work with 200 local people 
being reached. 
The prevention and access theme has provided the most opportunities for 
communication activities. Development of a single directory of services with a 
bespoke brand, ‘Our Rochdale’ has completed and launched. The address of the 
directory is ourrochdale.org.uk 
 
The range of communications mechanisms available to the CCG and council has 
and will continue to be used to promote the directory to communities. 
 
There have been internal and external communications activities associated with 
the launch of the new family services model in ensuring staff, practitioners and 
communities are aware of the new working model and access routes. 
 
The transformation work streams have offered public relations opportunities that 
have resulted in coverage positive for the borough. An example of this is 
coverage of the elderly oral health project which is the first of it’s kind in Greater 
Manchester and enabled by transformation funds.  
 
Summary of future work 
 
The community connector service has recruited an enthusiastic workforce that will 
work from the easy hubs and other community locations to support and guide 
people to help themselves using Our Rochdale as a core resource. The service 
will be known publicly as ‘Our Rochdale Connecting You’. In coming weeks and 
months a range of communications mechanisms will be used to promote the 
service to communities and professionals alike. 
 
Future communications and engagement activity will be developed in partnership 
by the council and CCG as the priorities and work streams stemming from the 
integrated commissioning board are formed. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
4.1 No alternatives have been considered as this report was requested by ICB for 
an information update only 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 
 
5. Not applicable 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

Page 29



 
6. There are no risk and policy implications to this update report 

 
Consultation 

 
7. Sandra Croasdale, Strategic Commissioning Programme Director 

Sally McIvor, Joint Director of Integrated Commissioning 
 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 
 
8. Not applicable Held by the report author, 3rd Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale 

 

For Further Information Contact: Alison Mitchell, 01706 652190  
 
Danny Brierley, 01706 
925739 danny.brierley@rochdale.gov.uk  

 

Page 30

mailto:danny.brierley@rochdale.gov.uk


1 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

Appendix 1 

 

 

‘Better Lives’  

Strong starts – secure futures 

A plan to transform health, care and wellbeing in the borough of 
Rochdale 

Communications and engagement plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 31



2 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

Contents 

Section  Title Page no 
1 Introduction  (What this plan covers) 

 
3 

2 Engaging with our communities about transformation, the 
story so far  
 

5 

3. Pillar one; Developing an integrated commissioning 
organisation : communications and engagement plan 
 

6 

4 Pillar two; Developing a local care organisation: 
communications and engagement plan 
 

8 

5 Pillar three; Implementing the transformation workstreams: 
communications and engagement plans 
 

10 

6 Core narratives of transformation themes 12 
6 Overview of communications and engagement activity 

relating to transformation; timeline 
 

15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 32



3 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

1. Introduction  (What this plan covers) 

This plan helps to explain the complex elements of how health and social care in Rochdale 
will change in the years to come – through the Rochdale transformation programme . The 
document provides a summary of the communications and engagement challenges in 
supporting the programme.  

The transformation programme is described in the Rochdale Borough Locality Plan, which is 
available at; www.hmr.nhs.uk/localityplan  and www.rochdale.gov.uk/localityplan  It consists 
of an ambitious blue print for the improvement of health and social care for the people of 
Rochdale and to ultimately improve lives for current and future generations.  

A user friendly name and strapline has been adopted to describe this ambitious plan;  

Better Lives  

Strong starts – secure futures 

A plan to transform health, care and wellbeing in the borough of Rochdale 

The vision in the plan is that emphasis will be placed on the prevention and avoidance of ill 
health with people taking a responsible and positive role in their own health and wellbeing. In 
time this will make a positive impact on other aspects of people’s lives, including an increase 
in healthy years lived and an increase in employment and wealth.  

The transformation plans for Rochdale are made up of three core pillars and this 
communications and engagement plan describes the work to support these; 

Pillar 1: The integration of the commissioning of health and social care services to form one 
commissioning organisation (made up from Rochdale Council and Heywood, Middleton and 
Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group/CCG) 

Pillar 2: The establishment of a locality care organisation (LCO) 

Pillar 3: The launch and establishment of changes to health and social care services in the 
transformational workstreams 

Throughout this plan there are core narratives about the different aspects of the 
transformation plans that are understandable to most audiences. These narratives describe 
what the programmes of work are and what they aim to achieve. They can be used widely 
for a number of purposes including public information and to update staff.  The core 
narratives are easily identifiable in the document as they are within text boxes. Stakeholders 
and colleagues can utilise this narrative for their purposes.  

 

 

The communications and engagement requirements for the three pillars are scoped in this 
document. These are then prioritised to establish an early work programme as well as an 
indication of which work will be required at a later stage and this can be found in section 7. 

Core narrative is contained in 
the boxes in this document 

 

Page 33

http://www.hmr.nhs.uk/localityplan
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/localityplan


4 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

This strategy will be reviewed and updated on a regular basis. Any comments or 
suggestions are welcome and can be sent to: 

hmrcommunications@nhs.net or newsdesk@rochdale.gov.uk 

  

Page 34

mailto:hmrcommunications@nhs.net
mailto:newsdesk@rochdale.gov.uk


5 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

2. Engaging with our communities about transformation, the story so far 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Core narrative 

Our agencies have engaged extensively with local people and other stakeholders in developing 
‘Better Lives.’ This gives us confidence that the changes we plan to make reflect local needs 
and have the support of our communities. 

Local patients, the public, health and social care providers, voluntary and community sector 
organisations and groups have been engaged at each stage of the transformation process, 
which began with a design fortnight in September 2015 when over 20 events were held over 10 
days for public, patients and other stakeholders to discuss proposals around the key local 
ideas. This led to the development of the final transformation themes.  

Engagement has progressed throughout the development of the final ‘Better Lives’ themes 
through updates at the CCG’s Patient and Public Engagement Committee and to regular 
forums such as the Rochdale Boroughwide User Forum, Healthwatch Rochdale and the Age 
UK User Carer forum.  

This engagement has continued through the transformation bid process engaging patients and 
the public around the key themes in the bid, giving patients and the public the opportunity to 
hear about the themes and play a part in their further development. 

An engagement plan is being rolled out to ensure that on-going engagement reaches all the 
local communities of the borough. As part of the process of engagement for the transformation 
agenda since January , several local venues have been visited to inform and raise awareness 
with local people about proposed and on-going developments to health and social care.  

Sherrif Street sheltered housing complex, the Lighthouse project, Croft Shifa Health Centre, 
Spotland Methodist Church, Milnrow Co-op, Littleborough Co-op, Kirkholt Community Church , 
Meadowfields Community Centre and Rochdale Town Hall have all been venues for this 
outreach work with 200 local people being reached. 

We have communicated with our staff and stakeholders on the nature of our transformational  
work, initially through a series of seven minute briefings that were released on a phased basis 
and made widely available.  

In recent months there has been consistent communications activity and support to introduce, 
launch and promote the new initiatives that have been enabled through transformation funds. 
Most of these initiatives belong to the prevention and access theme to promote better health 
and wellbeing within the borough. 

Page 35



6 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

3. Pillar one;  Developing an integrated commissioning organisation  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

There is a commitment for the continued development of the integrated commissioning 
organisation Organisational changes need to continue to take place to further integrate the 
relevant council and CCG functions and also to identify which work areas (and therefore 
staff) will eventually be better aligned to the LCO to carry out their roles.  

Internal stakeholders: CCG Staff, affected Council staff, other council staff,  elected 
Councillors, GP members, 

Other stakeholders: MPs, LCO partners, community stakeholders, other Councils and 
CCGs in Greater Manchester, local media. 

Communications and engagement challenge: For internal stakeholders there is a need 
for robust staff engagement with those affected by this process and also for clear, consistent 
and regular information to be made available between the agencies to let staff, members 
and elected members know what is happening.  

Core narrative 

Key to the success of the local transformation programme is the effective coming together of 
the parts of the council and the CCG that plan, buy (commission) and monitor health and social 
care services for people in Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale.  

Traditionally, because these services have been purchased and managed by different 
organisations, it has been difficult for some users of the services to navigate between them and 
some issues have occurred. At worst, care may have been delayed or confused due to 
organisational gaps. In other cases patients have said they find it complex to manage their care 
or the care of a family member.  

Integration of these functions aims to solve these issues and to make better use of the public 
service resources we have in Rochdale. In practical terms, integration means that the needs of 
patients are considered by joint teams who can allocate joined up budgets to fund services to 
meet these needs.  

Teams of staff who commission the services have already started being brought together under 
the Director of Integrated Commissioning into an integrated commissioning team.  

Other teams of the council and CCG who support commissioning have also begun and will 
continue to work in a more joined up way, some co-locating within the Riverside building.  

An integrated executive team and wider leadership team are established. An Integrated 
Commissioning Board oversees Rochdale’s progress in its formal joint commissioning. There 
will be one Accountable Officer between the organisations from July 2018.  

The current terms and conditions of employment of staff remains the same and both 
organisations will remain as separate entities for the foreseeable future.  

 

Page 36



7 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

Outwardly to other stakeholders there is a need for consistent and positive messages about 
the changes that are happening in Rochdale health and social care to be drafted and 
released to ensure consistency and avoid confusion.  

Plan for internal stakeholders  

Clearly when there are changes to an individual’s job there are established processes of 
consultation and engagement involving that person’s line manager, departmental head, 
human resources and trade unions. This section explores engagement and communications 
with staff and other stakeholders on a wider scale that is not specific to individual and team 
roles or shifts. 

Joint staff briefings have and will continue to be a feature for relevant teams of staff in the 
organisations. Staff will continue to be able to raise questions and concerns and a 
commitment to open and honest dialogue has been made. 

The CCG and council have established internal communications mechanisms. Internal 
newsletters and intranet content is being shared between the communications teams to 
ensure that mutually useful information is shared between the organisations.  

Other stakeholders  

Updates describing the progress of organisational change will be provided in the reports to 
the various committees and Boards. If required this information can be formed into a single 
briefing paper for external stakeholders and similarly when core milestones are reached.   

  

Page 37



8 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

4. Pillar two ; Developing a local care organisation (LCO) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Identity development and early work 

The ‘One Rochdale’ brand and identity was created by involving staff and stakeholders in an 
inclusive process.   

The identity that will help the new organisation to differentiate itself away from all the other 
existing health and social care organisations, and enable it to raise its profile and accurately 
position itself and its key messages, amongst the wide and varying key audience groups 
locally, regionally and nationally. 

A neighbourhood newsletter has already been established as an early communications tool 
to inform audiences about the exciting changes that are happening in the delivery of care 
across the borough.  

Core narrative 

Central to achieving the ambitions contained within ‘Better Lives’ is to transform the way care is 
provided to the people in Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale.  

A new Local Care Organisation called ‘One Rochdale’ was established on April 1st 2018 and it 
is bringing together primary, secondary and community health, mental health, social care, and 
voluntary and private sector providers across the borough.  

The LCO is a body that facilitates the joint working between existing providers ensuring that 
standards are being met and performance is being achieved as set out by the one 
commissioning body.  

In Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale the LCO lead organisation is Pennine Acute NHS 
Hospitals Trust (Northern Care Alliance) and other partner organisations are local GPs, 
Pennine Care Foundation Trust, BARDOC (Bury and Rochdale Doctors on call), Rochdale 
Health Alliance, council departments that provide services as well as third sector and voluntary 
providers. 

‘One Rochdale’ has a shared vision to work across organisational boundaries for the needs of 
patients. This will make the best use of the joint assets that are held across Rochdale and 
create an opportunity to better manage the needs of patients, thus improving health and the 
experiences of patients in the borough.   

The LCO, the new alliance of provider organisations in Rochdale will not only bring about 
improved health and wellbeing for  the local population through better integrated and more co-
ordinated care, but it will also bring about system improvements; creating reductions in A&E 
attendance, emergency admissions, as well as planned care . 

As ‘One Rochdale’ matures and its functions become more developed, it is likely that some 
current staff involved in delivering functions in the CCG and council will be more logically 
aligned to the work of the LCO.  

 

 

 

 

Page 38



9 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

A joint communications group has been established utilising expertise from provider partner 
organisations. A bespoke Communications and Engagement Strategy will be drafted and 
implemented to incorporate other communications and engagement actions and 
requirements moving forward.  

 

  

Page 39



10 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

5. Pillar three: Implementing the transformation workstreams 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The transformational workstreams continue to be varied in their state of development and 
there remains a continued need to communicate and engage with various audiences in order 
to increase the chances of their success.   

For the commissioning organisation led workstreams, Rochdale’s ‘the place’ branding has 
been adopted for communications related work in addition to the council and CCG brands. 

 

Core narrative 

The third strand to the transformation is for all agencies to work through a robust work 
programme to ultimately improve services for patients.  

In order to achieve the ambitions described in ‘Better Lives’  a whole systems shift of the way 
some services are delivered is required, to reduce complexity and duplication and to mirror 
best practice to ultimately support communities and individuals to live healthier and better lives.  

The transformational workstreams outline ways in which these shifts can become a reality by 
changing services which it time will meet these goals. The changes span every element of the 
health and social care spectrum. These schemes are being carefully implemented and closely 
monitored, led by either the commissioning organisation or the LCO. 

Ways in which individuals and communities can be better supported to make clearer and wiser 
choices to benefit their health are contained within these workstreams. New community 
workers based within neighbourhoods and practitioners will be able to better signpost people to 
sources of support using more detailed and easier to navigate information on public services. 

‘Our Rochdale’ a one stop shop website offering service information and support has launched 
and is becoming familiar within the borough.   A series of new workers  have been employed 
whose roles are to help signpost and support individuals and families through the range of 
services that are available locally. 

GP and community care services will be enhanced to allow them to help more local people to 
manage their own health as much as they can, before requiring the support of other health 
services provided in hospitals.  

Hospital services for both planned appointments and outpatients services, as well as for 
emergency care will be focused on providing safe and efficient treatment which will be based 
on patient’s needs for as short a period as possible allowing for seamless discharge back to 
home or care.  

Other programmes  detail the changes that are required to keep more people mentally well by 
offering people more support in their community to prevent escalation of problems.   

A children’s services programme describes changes that will allow existing teams to provide a 
better support mechanism for children and families in Rochdale. 

Page 40



11 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

Internal stakeholders: CCG Staff, Council staff, elected Councillors, GP members, 

Other stakeholders: Users of services, wider community, community representatives, MPs, 
LCO partners, staff in the LCO organisations, workers in the community and voluntary 
groups, other community stakeholders, other Councils and CCGs in Greater Manchester, 
local media 

Communications and engagement challenge: For internal stakeholders there is a need 
for a good level of knowledge about the nature and aims of the work programmes. In the first 
instance this is especially so for those that have already been launched and those ready to 
be launched. For GPs their knowledge will need to be tailored towards specific referral 
routes and information availability in order to advise patients.   

Generally this internal awareness raising can be done through existing communications and 
engagement mechanisms.   

Outwardly to other stakeholders there is a need for continued awareness raising in order that 
the services reach their full potential. Many of the changes to services involve existing staff 
based in provider organisations and in community roles working in a different way more 
closely together in neighbourhoods. This change requires the support of communications by 
offering a consistency of positive message that can be shared widely amongst all partner 
organisations.  

Similarly all referrers to and users of the new services need to have clear and concise 
narrative and access information so that best use can be made of the services and the 
transformation of care is realised.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



12 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

6. Core narratives of transformational themes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prevention  - Core narrative 

The prevention workstream brings together programmes that promote wellness and good 
health practice with patients in their community. These have short, medium and longer term 
goals to prevent ill health altogether or to avoid ill health escalating. 

Some of these programmes are aimed at strengthening prevention services in the 
community, for example, to focus on dental health provision for school children and older 
people in the borough and by encouraging expectant mothers to quit smoking.  

One of the biggest areas of work in the prevention programme involves promoting healthy 
messages and lifestyle information to support people to help themselves. Success in this 
area requires a shift in perceptions and behaviours in order to affect large scale adoption of 
healthier lifestyles.  

Access - Core narrative 

The access workstream brings together initiatives that will make it easier for people to access 
information about health and social care services, as well as other support services, that are 
available to the people of Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale.   

An online information source has been developed and has been launched, called Our 
Rochdale. It is the go-to place for patients, professionals and community workers alike to 
signpost patients appropriately to health, social care or other support services to meet their 
needs.  

One Rochdale is the main resource for the community connectors and other new workers 
whose job it is to signpost and support patients to help themselves and navigate services.  

The connectors are visible at community venues and at hubs across the borough. These 
services will be able to support and signpost people to the correct service and advice for 
them. 

Page 42



13 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Primary care - Core narrative 

The primary care workstream is aimed at making improvements to GP and primary care 
services in the borough and improving the patient experience. New roles in practices, such as 
pharmacists and focused care workers are complementing  the skill mix in surgeries, 
protecting clinical time and helping patients to receive the support they need.  

The accessibility of GP and primary care appointments can be an issue and so a system is 
being rolled out that ensures they are kept free for those that really need them.   

Future proofing of services by making the borough’s services resilient by attracting and 
retaining GPs and other primary care workers  is a key theme, to ensure that the family 
doctor and practice staff continue to be the cornerstone of peoples health needs into the 
future. 

Neighbourhoods - Core narrative  

The neighbourhoods theme brings together services that would serve people better if they 
were re-alligned to work more closely in neighbourhoods around the patients. This 
workstream is led by One Rochdale the Local Care Organisation. 

This way of working is closer to people’s homes and is more supportive for people to 
continue to live independently avoiding hospital and care homes whenever possible to do so. 

Central to the success of neighbourhood working is to embed integrated neighbourhood 
teams to provide a catalyst for other closer working in neighbourhoods. Six integrated 
neighbourhood teams have been created across Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale to help 
support people to manage their own care, whilst two contain social care expertise to help 
families with wider needs that impact health. 

A variety of services are earmarked to be remodelled to work in different ways that allow a 
focus on neighbourhood working.   

It makes sense for services for more frail and vulnerable people to be provided closer to 
where they live. That’s why the falls prevention service will be realigned, as will the 
Intermediate Tier Service incorporating day care services and palliative care. Mental health 
support services too are being focused more in to locations in the community by the creation 
of a of Living Well Hub and Crisis Cafe 

 

 

 

Page 43



14 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

 

 

 

 

 

Planned care - Communications and engagement support 

 

 

 

 

 

Neighbourhoods - Communications and engagement support 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planned care - Core narrative 

The planned care workstream is aimed at reducing the difficulties that can be encountered by 
patients when they are referred for treatment in the NHS. This can cover long waiting times, 
duplication or errors when the patient is passed between providers of care. There is a strong 
emphasis on more closely aligned working between providers of care, which will be improved 
by the development of the LCO. There is also an emphasis on providing more care wherever 
possible in community locations meaning that people will only need to travel for hospital 
appointments when it is absolutely necessary. An integrated way of working to deliver some 
areas of care is already established, as is a new pain care service aimed at achieving better 
outcomes for patients in community settings. 

Family services model - Core narrative 

The family services model workstream is aimed at changing the focus of family support 
services to offer a joined up early and local response to families with emerging needs. New 
and dedicated workers  based in localities are facilitating existing groups and agencies to 
work together across organisational boundaries to meet and contain the needs of families in 
their area. For families their health, social care and other welfare needs can be accessed via 
single point near where they live. 

For children with greater needs a strengthened specialist hub will offer a wider skills set 
including social worker support 

Urgent care - Core narrative 

The urgent care workstream aims to help better manage care for the poorliest of patients to 
give them the care they need in hospital quickly. Faster response for emergency cases can 
be provided by further investment in a fast response paramedic.  

Ways to re-direct patients who do not need urgent hospital care by intercepting them at A&E 
or via 999 are planned, this will direct them to GPs and other more appropriate services.  

Other schemes are aimed at speeding up assessments and discharge of patients who are 
ready to leave the hospital. This keeps people in hospital for only a minimum of time helping 
to keep them as independent as possible and frees up space for others who genuinely need 
it.   

  

Page 44



15 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

7. Overview of communications and engagement activity relating to transformation; timeline updated with the new 
information in far right column  

January – March 2018 

Pillar/workstream Activity description Mechanisms to be used Update as at June 2018 
All Agreement of name for the overall 

transformation programme  
EMT/ELT/Transformation Board  Complete 

Pillar three; 
Implementing the 
transformation 
workstreams 
(Family Services 
Model) 

Work to support the establishment 
of locality teams, consistency of 
language and messages. Support 
for launch events in January.  
Launch plan  

Core narratives for staff briefing and team 
building 
Internal newsletter articles, materials for 
launch events.  
Stakeholder briefs. Press releases, web 
presence, social media, stakeholder briefs 

Complete 

Pillar three; 
Implementing the 
transformation 
workstreams 
(Prevention) 

Promotion of new initiatives inc 
older people oral health scheme, 
health and wellbeing coaches 

Internal newsletter articles, web presence, 
press releases, social media activity 

Complete 

Pillar two; 
Developing a local 
care organisation: 

Newsletter creation for LCO 
partners (using the place brand) 

*Implemented by LCO. Enewsletter cascaded 
to staff via communications leads of partners 
and CCG and council 

Complete 

Pillar one; 
Developing an 
integrated 
commissioning 
organisation  
 

Re-establish regular joint staff 
briefings for CCG and appropriate 
council staff 
Establish regular weekly 
messages in sections of weekly 
newsletters  

Staff events 
Internal newsletter articles 

Complete 

Pillar two; 
Developing a local 
care organisation: 

Organisational name development 
tied in with  vision 

*Implemented by LCO 
Staff/locality team building workshop 

Complete 

Pillar two; 
Developing a local 
care organisation: 

Website development/web 
presence 

*Implemented by LCO Not yet implemented 

Pillar three; **Detailed scoping of the  Complete 

P
age 45



16 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

Implementing the 
transformation 
workstreams 
 

initiatives in each transformational 
theme to continue. This will plan 
an appropriate response to the 
implementation of each initiative 
and allow it to be embedded in 
core work programmes for the 
communications teams of the 
Council and CCG 

April – June 2018 

Pillar three; 
Implementing the 
transformation 
workstreams 
(Access) 
 

Launch of the Rochdale Directory of 
Service utilising the place brand. 
Communications plan to be drafted to 
include launch and promotion through 
full range of communications 
mechanisms of CCG and Council to 
raise awareness in the borough 

Press release, web presence, social media, 
promotional materials inc banners, 
animation for screens, posters, flyers, 
community engagement events and demos 

In progress 
 

Pillar two; 
Developing a local 
care organisation: 

Professional/stakeholder engagement 
and presentations at GP, practice 
nurse, other forums 

*Implemented by LCO 
Presentations, promotional materials 

In progress 

Pillar two; 
Developing a local 
care organisation: 

Promotion of Rochdale LCO widely 
externally  

*Implemented by LCO 
Press release, social media presence 

Not yet implemented 

Pillar one; 
Developing an 
integrated 
commissioning 
organisation  
 

Establishment of a single 
commissioning function and single 
accountable officer  

Stakeholder briefs, newsletter articles, 
press release 

Not yet implemented 

 

Beyond July 2018  

Pillar three; 
Implementing the 

Launch of behaviour change 
activities  

Mechanisms to be recommended by Marketing 
company 

Plans to be revised 

P
age 46



17 
 

DRAFT 3  ‘Better Lives’ communications & engagement plan  
    

transformation 
workstreams 
(Prevention) 
 
Pillar three; 
Implementing the 
transformation 
workstreams 
(Access) 
 

Promotion of Our Rochdale 
Connecting You service  

Press release, web presence, social media, 
promotional materials inc banners, animation for 
screens, posters, flyers, community 
engagement events and demos 

In preparation 

 

P
age 47



 

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

 Date of Meeting 26th June 2018 
Portfolio Transformation 
Report Author Sandra Croasdale  
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Transformation Highlight Report 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. This paper provides the ICB with an update on the following: 

 

 Programme Delivery – describing the effect of the transformation fund 
on our locality. 

 Local Care Organisation –update since “go live” date.  

 Risk – a look at the quarterly Transformation risk submitted to Greater 
Manchester. 

 Finance – an update on finance in relation to transformation is provided 
in a separate paper to ICB 
 

The overall rating of the programme for this period is Amber. 
 

 

Recommendation 

 
2.  To note the content of this paper. 
 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. Report provided for discussion to update members on progress. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 

Programme Delivery 
The detail of the Transformation Programme Delivery is provided in appendix 
1.  
 
Appendix 1 –Theme Update – Whilst there are challenges in the system (as 
outlined in appendix 1) delivery is developing with some interventions 
approaching positive milestones. In particular: 
 

 Directory of service is live and the content continues to be updated and 
improved. A promotional communications plan is due for 
implementation.  

 

 Easy Hubs now have a full complement of Community Connectors who 
are undergoing intensive training on the run up to the soft launch date.  

 

 One Rochdale is settling into the transition of their 17 interventions and 
has a series of collaborative meetings with commissioners and 
providers set up to establish a realistic view of 2018/19 delivery. 

 
While progress is being made across the system in many areas, focussed 
attention has been shifted to developing more robust plans around areas such 
as Planned Care to drive their development. 
 
 
Appendix 2 – HEATT CAR Case Study – Good news stories have continued 
to be developed across all areas of Transformation demonstrating the real 
impact being experienced by our residents.  
 
Greater Manchester recently requested case studies from each locality.  
Appendix 2 is our submission, a heart-warming story of a local lady’s journey 
from isolation to being a volunteer in her community, all stemmed from a visit 
by the HEATT Car team. 
 
Transformation Performance Indicators (TPI’s) 
With 6 workshops now complete focus has shifted to drilling down into 
identified TPI’s, testing data, and developing a monthly report. Follow up 
sessions with Project Delivery Managers for each intervention continue to 
progress. Where the key TPI’s have been identified, these are being tested 
out with data sources and a first look at this report will be seen at ICB in July 
as part of Transformation Performance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 
 
 
Local Care Organisation (One Rochdale Health and Care) 
During May and June a robust analysis of the due diligence process, which 
completed at the end of March, has been undertaken. This has included a 
review by colleagues in the Integrated Commissioning Directorate, Integrated 
Finance Directorate and wider local authority, including legal services. This 
review has been shared with the LCO and at the time of writing this paper 
feedback from the LCO is awaited before finalising the lessons learnt and 
recommendations for subsequent gateways.  
 
Work has also continued on the development of the new LCO contract. A draft 
contract was issued at the end of March which has now been scrutinised by 
the host provider on behalf of the LCO and a number of negotiation meetings 
have taken place. There are currently 3 interventions included in the contract: 

 Core Plus 2 

 Primary Care Academy 

 Respiratory in Integrated Neighbourhood Teams. 
 
The decision has been taken to remove Discharge to Assess from the draft 
contract to ensure that there are no additional VAT liabilities.  
 
Further work is ongoing to fully understand any legal and VAT implications of 
the contracting arrangements with the LCO. The Local Authority legal services 
are fully engaged in this work.  
 
The remainder of the 17 interventions for which the LCO have responsibility 
are being considered to determine phasing into the new contract. This is being 
considered jointly with the LCO.  
 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. The financial information in relation to the transformation programme is 

provided in a separate paper to ICB.  

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. Appendix 3 – GM Risk Submission Q1  

The Quarter 1 Transformation Risk Register was submitted to Greater 
Manchester Health & Social Care Partnership on 31st May 2018.  At the end 
of this period, the risk register contained 4 red graded risks and 5 amber 
rated risks.  These are as follows: 
 
Red Risks 

 Failure to close the collective financial gap by 2020/21 

 Capital Funding for A&E Developments 

 Single Hospital System & Northern Care Alliance Development 

 Delivery of Local Care Organisation outcomes, deflections and 
financial cashable savings 

Page 50



 
Amber Risks 

 Provider Contract Change Arrangements 

 Engagement of Key Market Sectors 

 Stakeholder support for Locality Plan interventions 

 Benefits realisation of public behaviour change 

 Workforce 
 
Since the last submission, 1 risk has been removed from the risk register, 
which was the potential failure to establish appropriate commissioning 
arrangements for the Local Care Organisation by April 2018 which could 
have meant the failure to deliver transformation outcomes.  This risk has 
been mitigated, with The Local Care Organisation going live on the 1st April 
2018 with responsibility for 17 interventions and Pennine Acute Hospitals as 
the host provider. 
 
 

Consultation 

 
7. Theme leads 

One Rochdale Health and Care (LCO) 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. Not applicable Held by the report author, 3rd Floor, 
Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale 

 

For Further Information Contact: Sandra Croasdale, scroasdale@nhs.net 
07747 473888 
 

 

Page 51

mailto:scroasdale@nhs.net


Appendix 1 – Theme Update 

Theme Updates from: 

Page 2: Access 

Page 3/4: Prevention 

Page 5: Primary Care 

Page 6: Planned Care 

Page 7: Children’s 

Page 8/9: One Rochdale 

 

P
age 52



Access 
 
Content on Our Rochdale website continues to be developed and improved. A promotional communications plan has been 

developed and is now being implemented. Governance arrangements for the website and content management are being 

developed and should be finalised over the next period. 

 

The whole Community Connector team have commenced in post to support the hubs and are undergoing an intensive training 

induction. The “soft launch” of the community connector service is underway. The public launch has been moved to the end of 

June to enable communications and branding materials to be produced to support the launch. Engagement with stakeholders 

is underway and there has been briefing sessions at the GP locality engagement groups with further sessions planned and 

the service manager is promoting the service at township forums. The risk around wifi access at the hub locations has been 

mitigated and access it now available. 

 

The Housing Triage project continues to operate well with wider stakeholders and services being engaged to promote the 

service. The current deflections targets for housing triage are unlikely to be achieved with this project in isolation however the 

TPIs are soon to be finalised. 

 

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

Directory of 
Services 

1 1 

Easy Hubs 9 9 

Housing 
Triage  

1 1 

P
age 53



Prevention  
Progress has continued in prevention in May / June. The vast majority of the recruitment in the theme has been completed with the 

exception of the children’s oral health project. There have been some delays internally in Pennine Care that have contributed to this 

however the recruitment is now in progress, the mobilisation rating for this project has been moved to red. 

 

The self-care programme lead has commenced in post and had her initial work plan approved at the Prevention and Access Partnership 

Board. Work to develop the integrated prevention system is continuing with stakeholder and the development of the Connecting You 

activation measure which will enable outcomes of the work to be assessed. The Voluntary Sector Development Manager post is out to 

recruitment and a number of TPI’s have now been developed across the programme to help better understand delivery of the schemes. 

 

The behaviour change project has been changed to a amber rating and the milestones of this project need reviewing over the next 

period. This is as a result of the original project plan being amended due to concerns about the direction the project was heading. The 

marketing agency has now come up with a way forward that has been approved by the Director of Public Health that should ensure that a 

behaviour change campaign that will support the work in prevention and embed the behaviour change messages into a range of 

practitioners practice.  

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

Health and 

Wellbeing 

Coaches & 

Community  

11.5 10 

Elderly Oral 

Health  
2.5 2.5 

Self Care  
1 1 

Reducing 

Diabetes 

Currently staffed and 
funded by NHSE 

Behaviour 
Change  

Not funded by 
Transformation 

P
age 54



Prevention continued 

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

Smoking in 

Pregnancy  
1.5 1.5 

Children's Oral 

Health  
4 0 

Accident 

Prevention 
Funded by Public Health P

age 55



Primary Care  
 
The overall Primary Care programme is currently assessed as Amber based primarily upon the risk relating to non delivery of savings 
within the Clinical Pharmacist project.  
 
There are four projects in total within the Primary Care theme with Focused Care workers, Core+2 and Primary Care Academy all 
reporting as green with no significant risks to project delivery or financial balance. Core+2 and Primary Care Academy are included within 
the LCO contract for 2018/19 and delivery is being supported by tactical commissioners from the CCG Primary Care Team.  
 
The clinical pharmacy project is currently reporting as Amber.  
Progress has been made through the developments of a Medicines Optimisation 2018/21 paper,  which includes the proposed GP 
prescribing budgets and QIPP savings for 2018/19, the clinical pharmacist transformation programme, monies available and expected 
savings generated. This paper is currently awaiting exec sign off and will be presented at the Innovation and Transformation Group for 
approval on Weds  20th June. If approved, this will be taken through RHA/LCO governance for further consideration and next steps 
identified.  
The engagement of a 0.8 FTE locum clinical pharmacist is also due to start in July. Making 1.8 FTE in post through locum agency.  
 

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

Clinical 
Pharmacy  

8 1.8 

Focussed 
Care Workers 

16 8.5 

P
age 56



Planned Care 
• The Planned Care programme is currently red for overall theme status. However in the last month, the following steps have been taken in order to 

improve co-ordination and delivery of this theme: 
• Elective Care Transformation and Delivery Board established, first meeting 29/06/18. Terms of Reference will be discussed and the group will be asked 

to focus on development of joint delivery plans for IECP2 and LTC Acute. Planned Care Delivery Team established to review progress against plan to 
discuss and resolve the risks and issues outlined below, and celebrate the highlights. 

 
• The Living with and beyond cancer intervention is reporting as red due to delays experienced in implementation after awaiting a decision re GM Cancer 

funding. However, the intervention is now underway: a project manager is now in post and a project plan is being developed. The Contract Meeting 
with PAHT took place mid-April, and the service specification will continue to be reviewed and firmed up. Early Diagnosis of Cancer, formerly known as 
straight to CT, is a project developed from the Living with and Beyond Cancer Intervention. This is not yet mobilised, and a project plan is being 
developed with an aim to launch the service from 1st Jan 2018.  

• The IECP intervention continues to report as amber as there is still considerable work needed to deliver the full transformation as described in the 
specification. Some of the areas of concern have been in resolving operational issues within delivery of the multi-agency IECP pathways. The IECP2 
intervention is currently reporting as red for overall project status, and this is mainly due to pressures within General Surgery and Ophthalmology, 
which mean there has been a delay in mobilising the transformation plans.  

• The LTC Acute/RightCare intervention is reporting as amber. The most significant activity has been within the Cardiology intervention whereby a 
cardiology Single Point of Access was agreed by CPAP. Cost modeling work with Bury CCG and PAHT is underway in the next period. There continues to 
be a red risk associated with the RightCare data and translating this into meaningful change projects – a review of this data will provide direction  for 
the key areas of focus for this intervention. 

• The Pain intervention currently has two identified red risks in regards to the sedation of patients and the repatriation of patients back into IPMS and the 
mitigating actions of reducing these risks are ongoing. Despite this the Pain services in the community is showing a reduction in acute activity and is 
achieving financial savings as a result of a community based offer.  

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation RAG 
Expenditure  

RAG 
Deflection RAG 

Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

Living with & beyond 
cancer  

5 0 

Early Diagnosis of 
cancer  

Not yet mobilised 
N/A 

 
tbc 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 

IECP N/A N/A N/A 

IECP2 N/A N/A N/A 

LTC Acute/ Right Care  N/A N/A N/A 

Pain Services N/A N/A N/A 

P
age 57



Children's 
 

The two constituent projects are showing as amber. These ratings  relate to the challenges in recruitment to the roles as 
indicated in the previous update.  
 
The risks in the theme remain as described in previous reports. Recruitment challenges have been highlighted in subsequent 
slides relating to hashtag thrive posts and the paediatric nurse practitioners.  In response to the paediatric nurse practitioner 
recruitment issues, the project milestones  have being re-scoped and 3x Band 6 roles have now been advertised; these posts 
will undergo clinical skills training to upskill to Band 7. Full mobilization of the service is now expected in January 19.  
 
Furthermore, the recruitment delays for paediatric nurse practitioners has offered an opportunity within the budget. It is 

proposed that Pennine Care use part of the under spend to commission a new service via the voluntary sector that focuses 
on changing the behaviors of parents/children that repeatedly present at urgent Care/A and E by coordinating 
community care, delivering interventions to reduce parental anxiety and increase self management. We are in the 
process of quantifying this change, and this is currently being escalated through the change control process.  
 
Deflections for paediatric nurse practitioners are showing amber for this month as whilst current targets can be 
achieved, the overall year deflection totals  are unlikely to be met.  
 
Works are ongoing to develop the  Alliance arrangements as detailed in the One System Approach.  A detailed Alliance plan is 
being produced this period and will tie into the Alliance finance and contracting sessions. Executive summaries for both 
interventions have been developed.  

Overall  
RAG 

Mobilisation 
RAG 

Expenditure  
RAG 

Deflection RAG 
Risk  
RAG 

Headcount RAG 

Budget Actual 

One System  28.5 24.5 

Paediatric 
Nurse 
Practitioner 

8 5 

P
age 58



One Rochdale Health & Care 
 
The ORHC Leadership acknowledges and has responsibility for monitoring progress of ORHC (LCO) led schemes. 
Significant work has been undertaken and is planned to be completed by the end of June to take all ORHC (LCO) 
projects through the confirm & challenge, ‘Black Hat’ process. 
 
Whilst ITS expansion is green for mobilisation, of note are the minimal deflections for May. This remains the focus of 
ongoing work. INT Enhanced respiratory and Falls/Borough wide therapy are green as an overall RAG rating, are amber 
for mobilisation as recruitment is currently underway. ORHC have agreed upon consideration that High Cost 
Placement- Shared Lives may be subject to a change control request. Complex Dependency Mini Hub and Substance 
Misuse schemes require further understanding through the confirm and challenge, ‘Black Hat’ events and may be also 
be subject to a change control request.   

Scheme 
Overall 

RAG 
Mobilisation RAG Expenditure RAG Deflection RAG in Month 

Domiciliary Care No deflections until August 

MH plan- Out of Hospital 

Offer 

No deflections until August 

 

MH Plan- Primary Care 

Offer 

No deflections /enabler scheme 

 

MH- Urgent Care Offer No deflections until August 

P
age 59



Scheme 
Overall 

RAG 

Mobilisation 

RAG 
Expenditure RAG Deflection RAG  

INT – Enhanced Respiratory 

ED deflections YTD at M2 show an over delivery of 24% 

NEL deflections YTD at M2 show an under delivery of 43% 

OPD – TBC (in month) 

INT – Falls/Borough wide 

Therapy 

Recruitment 

underway  
No deflections anticipated in M1. 

ITS – Expanded Service 

(excluded CHES)  

Recruitment 

underway 

 

Very minimal deflections seen in May (Month 1 of go live) (in 

month) 

HEATT Service 

ED deflections M2= 159 which is on target but YTD = -86 (-4%) 

for ED. NEL in M2 exceeded target by  23 but YTD -2 

deflections (in month) 

Discharge 2 Assess (joint 

scheme with RBC) 
Achieved M1 £ savings but not EXBD reduction (in month) 

Enhanced Carers (joint 

scheme with RBC) 
No Deflections in 18/19 

CORE + 2 

Primary Care Academy 

Primary Care/Urgent Care 

interface redesign 
No deflections until August 

High Cost Placements – 

Shared Lives 

There is concern that this project has been delayed 

substantially because of the need for support from Shared 

Lives Plus and there is recognition that this project will not meet 

the 2018/19 objectives in relation to spend and deflections and 

that these need to be reviewed.  

 

Complex Dependency Mini 

Hub 
No deflections until November  

Substance Misuse No deflections until November 

P
age 60



HEATT Car (HMR Emergency Assessment & Treatment Team) 

WHAT IS HEATT CAR?  

The HEATT Service intercepts 999 calls from NWAS and sends an 
emergency response vehicle manned with multi-disciplinary 
healthcare professionals that are able to assess and treat people in 
their own home or community setting.  

ABOUT ELIZABETH…  

Elizabeth lives on her own. Prior to intervention she lived and slept in her living room chair 
unable to travel to the toilet by herself, was in a poor state of hygiene and was drinking high 
volumes of alcohol on a daily basis. Elizabeth had a nasty fall, and managed to contact 999 for 
help. The traditional pathway of help would have been for Elizabeth to have been sent to A&E 
for assessment and admitted to hospital for further testing, observation and treatment before 
being discharged back to solitude.  

HEATT SERVICE EXPERIENCE…  

When Elizabeth phoned 999, the HEATT Service intercepted the call and a 
home visit was arranged. As Elizabeth was chair ridden and immobile, a 
forced entry to the property was carried out to get to her. The team 
provided a full assessment including a blood & urine sample tests which 
were sent straight for analysis. Personal hygiene assistance was provided 
on scene, and the front door repaired to maintain the safety of her home.  

 
 
 
 
 

Elizabeth’s video 

Elizabeth was able to remain at home and was referred to a ‘virtual ward’ where the Urgent 
Community Care Team (UCCT) arranged same day carer support. Over a two week period 
Elizabeth received care from an Advance Nurse Practitioner, Physio and Occupational 
Therapist, GP & alcohol liaison.  

From the support received Elizabeth now has improved mobility, mood and appetite. She is 
now sleeping in her own bed, has equipment in place and education provided to improve her 
health and wellbeing.  
Elizabeth is now a member of a local social community group where she has made new 
friendship circles and is volunteering at Fairfield General Hospital.  

IMPACT TO THE SYSTEM…  
Since the service began in Dec 2016 HEATT Car has responded to 1406 incidents, 1188 (84.5%) 
which were managed outside of an A&E setting, equating to £1.26m savings to the system 
through the avoidance of A&E attendances, admissions and cost of transfer.  
 

Without the HEATT Service and wider support from the UCCT team, Elizabeth would likely 
have been admitted and discharged without the full support needed, resulting  in the 
continuation of unhealthy lifestyle, isolation and the risk of readmission.  

Page 61

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3A_k5lDuIdU&feature=youtu.be


Risk Title Risk Description
Risk Owner/ 

Editor
Likelihood Impact Score Controls Assurance Gaps in Controls

Gaps in 

Assurance

Assurance 

Level

Action for Further 

Control
Likelihood Impact Score

Objective 

Owner

Failure to close the 

collective financial gap 

by 2020/21

There is a risk of failure to close the financial gap 

due to the current position of Pennine Acute and 

Pennine Care impacting on the overall 

transformation programme

Simon 

Wootton, Sam 

Evans

5 5 25 Working closely with both providers to establish a strong 

relationship to ensure a consistent focus on the Transformation 

/Locality Plan while they work on their business as usual and 

strategy to close their gaps.

Establish decommissioning strategy. Increasing the efficiency 

expectations across all the partners.

Robust financial planning and governance of all financial 

pressures of all providers including early identification of 

pressures.

Actions to address pressures to be taken via ICB in line with 

decommissioning principles and strategies.

Increased level of efficiencies across all providers above current 

plan for in year savings

Regular finance and transformation 

delivery reports to both ICB and LCO 

Board.

Regular Director of Finance and 

Chief Financial Officer meetings so 

that all parties are aware of the 

system financial position

None None Significant Decommissioning 

principles signed off now 

and proposed schemes 

been taken to ICB for 

approval - now need to 

rank in order as requested 

by ICB

3 4 12 Simon Wootton

Workforce There is a risk that failure to have the  appropriate 

workforce in place across the whole system, as a 

result of a significant new workforce and shift in 

workforce required to operate new delivery 

models, will result in the inability to deliver new 

service models.

Sandra 

Croasdale

3 4 12 1. Workforce tracker in place

2. Rochdale Locality Workforce Development Group established 

4 programmes of work with tasks and finish groups identified 

including - brand/identity, culture change, career pathways, hard 

to fill posts.

3.Membership of the GM Workforce at an Exec level and Senior 

HR Representative level 

4.Work has commenced with local further education colleges to 

develop a health and care apprentices. 

Detailed plan once developed will be 

overseen by the Rochdale Locality 

Workforce Group operating which 

will report to ICB through 

Transformation Delivery Board

Detailed plan being developed - 

although high level work streams 

have been identified and work 

started

The significant gaps in the core 

workforce of PAHT is driving up 

agency costs and contributing to 

the financial deficit

None Significant Recruitment under way 

with some key posts now 

recruited. Delays caused by 

issues with finance in 

provider organisations 

now addressed. 

2 4 8 Sandra Croasdale, 

Local Care 

Organisation

Capital Funding for A&E 

Developments

There is a risk that capital funding for A&E 

developments will not be forthcoming, as a result 

of national funding decisions, preventing the 

development of an Urgent Front Door and 

effective integration of services.  This could result 

in failure to deliver activity shifts as set out in the 

transformation plan

Simon 

Wootton

4 4 16 Plans fully developed and ready for immediate implementation 

should capital be forthcoming.

Should national funding not be available the alternative funding 

will be explored or urgent care service offer will be developed

Monitored via Strategic Estates 

Group

None None Significant Discussions continue with 

NHSI

Support for this capital 

received from GM H&SCP

3 4 12 Simon Wootton

Single Hospital System & 

Northern Care Alliance 

Development

There is a risk that the focus on the Single Hospital 

System and development of the Northern Care 

Alliance could impact on the capacity to develop 

the Rochdale LCO and any delays in understanding 

where activity will sit could cause delays in 

delivering transformation.

Simon 

Wootton,Steve 

Taylor

4 4 16 Working closely with both providers to establish a strong 

relationship to ensure a consistent focus on the Transformation 

/Locality Plan during the development of the single hospital 

system. Regular discussion at LCO board to ensure that all are 

aware of current situation and to establish any mitigating 

actions.

Strong North East Sector governance arrangements established 

including oversight of the clinical services strategy for Pennine 

Acute Hospital Trust, Chief Executive Rochdale Borough Council, 

Chief Officer Bury CCG are members of the single hospital service 

board.

Full locality engagement with an emerging single hospital service 

transaction board. 

Transformation bid monies to support North East Sector 

governance agreed to support the governance infrastructure and 

oversight of this service change.

Local Care Organisation Board level 

discussions to ensure awareness of 

current situation and to establish 

mitigating actions

North East Sector Governance 

arrangements

None None Limited On-going work with 

Rochdale LCO through LCO 

Board

3 3 9 Simon Wootton, 

Steve Rumbelow, 

Steve Taylor

Delivery of Local Care 

Organisation outcomes, 

deflections and financial 

cashable savings

There is a risk that failure to deliver specific LCO 

outcomes, deflections and subsequent financial 

cashable savings as part of the Transformation Bid 

due to potential delays in delivering milestones 

and the reliance on other NES localities to deliver 

in order to realise cashable savings will result in 

the potential for GM H&SCP to stop funding 

interventions if they do not demonstrate delivery 

of the required outcomes.

Sandra 

Croasdale

3 5 15 1.Further work being completed to ensure clear view on 

deflections for all schemes, including developing mechanisms for 

clearly monitoring deflection delivery.

2. Work on-going across NES to consider what work can be 

aligned to deliver greatest benefits

Regular reports to LCO Board and 

ICB

North East Sector Executive 

Meetings

None None Significant Continue to monitor 

transformation delivery

2 5 10 Sandra Croasdale

Transformation

Current Target

1 of 2

P
age 62



Risk Title Risk Description
Risk Owner/ 

Editor
Likelihood Impact Score Controls Assurance Gaps in Controls

Gaps in 

Assurance

Assurance 

Level

Action for Further 

Control
Likelihood Impact Score

Objective 

Owner

Current Target

Benefits realisation of 

public behaviour change 

There is a risk that failure to fully realise the 

benefits of the plan that are related specifically to 

public behaviour change due to the lack of buy in 

from the public for the importance of using health 

and care service resources wisely and 

appropriately, will result in benefits in the plan 

may not be realised

Andrea Fallon 3 4 12 1. Detailed communications and engagement plan with specific 

intervention level actions linked to behaviour change and action 

to gain clinical and political buy-in to have a more assertive 

relationship with the public regarding utilisation of services.

2. Behaviour change programme to be implemented

3. Consideration to be given to mechanism for a more assertive 

approach to the public

Oversight from Access and 

Prevention Partnership Board, 

reports to LCO Board and ICB via 

Transformation reporting

None None Significant Communications and 

engagement plan under 

development with close 

links to LCO 

communications.

Behaviour change 

programme on track

2 4 8 Andrea Fallon

Stakeholder support for 

Locality Plan 

interventions

There is a risk that failure to gain public and wider 

stakeholder support for Locality Plan interventions 

and to not adequately consult where appropriate 

due to a lack of engagement with the public and 

wider stakeholders will result in reputational 

damage to all parties of the LCO and potential 

blocks on delivery of key interventions

Sally McIvor, 

Sheila Downey

3 4 12 1. Communications and  engagement group established across 

the sector to support both the LCO and SCF.

2. Regular engagement events held across the borough.

3. Communications representatives attendance at partnership 

boards and overarching Transformation Delivery Board to ensure 

all communications and engagement activity is identified and 

appropriately managed. Identification of where formal 

consultation is required.

Communications and Engagement 

will be monitored via ICB going 

forward

None Reporting 

mechanism to 

ICB to be 

established

Significant Communications and 

engagement plan under 

development with close 

links to LCO 

communications.

1 4 4 Sandra Croasdale

Engagement of Key 

Market Sectors

There is a risk that failure to fully engage with key 

market sectors including the home care market, 

wider Primary Care and Voluntary sector due to 

potential lack of understanding with respect to 

the scope of the transformation and LCO 

development agenda will result in key benefits of 

the plan not being realised.

Sally McIvor 2 4 8 1. Include key sectors in the communications and engagement 

strategy. 

2.Key members of the LCO Provider to take responsibility for 

engaging with all sectors 

3. New LCO Board established covering wider sectors

4. Representatives of the wider sector are now sitting on the LCO 

Board - Carers, Residential/Nursing Care, Domiciliary Care, Health 

and Wellbeing voluntary sector alliance

LCO Board

Partnership Agreement

None None Significant 1 4 4 Sally McIvor

Provider Contract 

Change Arrangements

There is a risk that the need to change contracting 

arrangements with provider organisations to 

reflect transformation is not understood or acted 

upon within the provider which may mean that 

difficult decisions need to be made and enacted 

throughout the whole organisation 

Sam Evans, 

Sally McIvor

2 5 10 1. Working closely with both providers to establish a strong 

relationship to ensure a consistent focus on the Transformation 

/Locality Plan.

2. Key members of the LCO Provider must ensure that the future 

contract documentation is understood and agreed by all the 

Providers. 3. Contracting departments from the Commissioner 

and Providers will be in constant communication. The LCO Board 

to receive updates on the contractual discussions.

LCO Board

Partnership Agreement Regular 

dialogue between the Chief Finance 

Officers to discuss the future 

contract.

None None Significant 1 5 5 Sam Evans, Sally 

McIvor

2 of 2

P
age 63



Report to Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting- 26th June 2018
Portfolio- Integrated 
Commissioning

Lead Member- Councillor Rowbotham 

Report Author- Tim Buckley Lead Officer- Sam Evans
Public Document

Health and Social Care Pool Budget Report- 
Period 2 (May)  2018/19 

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

To update the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on the financial position 
of the pooled budget for the financial year 2018/19 at period 2 (end of May).
The pooled budget excludes the Better Care Fund (BCF) and the GM 
Transformation funding which will be reported separately to the ICB in 
2018/19.The pooled budget has been amended to take into account the 
savings reported in April and May, the current gap being reported on the pool 
budget is £3.2m which is a reduction of £2m since the May ICB due to 
additional one off contributions from additional Adult Social Care grants 
(£0.3m) and further adjustments to CCG budgets at period 2 (£1.7m).

The LA provider services for Adult Social Care (ASC) are not reporting any 
variations to budget at period 2. Children’s Social Care (CSC) provider 
services have identified a potential pressure around residential placements,  
work is currently ongoing to identify the value of this pressure and a further 
update will be given at period 4 (end of July). 

The ICB should note that during 2018/19 any LA provider service variations, 
being noted in the report for information, will be for the Council to identify 
mitigating actions. However for future financial years funding of such 
pressures will be subject to the development of the pooled fund 
commissioning arrangements. 

Page 64

Agenda Item 12



Recommendation

2.1

2.2

2.3

ICB notes the current position for the pooled budget for 2018/19.

ICB notes the current funding gap on the pool is £3.2m and will be addressed 
in future reports to ICB.

ICB notes that the Council will have responsibility to identify mitigating actions 
for any variations in LA provider services in 2018/19. 

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

This report updates the ICB on the Health and Social Care pooled budgets for 
2018/19 in line with National Health Service England (NHSE) guidelines and 
the Greater Manchester (GM) Health and Social Care Partnership 
requirements. As part of operating a pooled budget regular monitoring reports 
are required.

The BCF has been excluded from the pooled reporting and will be reported 
separately to ICB in line with NHSE requirements for reporting each quarter. If 
the locality receives graduation during 2018/19 then the reporting will be 
reviewed to consider bringing the BCF into the pool and reporting the budgets 
together.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

The pooling of budgets between the two organisations, LA and CCG, is in line 
with NHSE guidelines that all LA Adult Care and CCG budgets should be 
pooled by 2020/21 to support integration of Health and Social Care.
 
The operation of a formal pooled budget is now in place from April 2018 in line 
with the agreement for Transformation Funding from the GM Health and Social 
Care Partnership.

Graduation has not yet been received from NHSE for the locality, this means 
that reporting of the BCF is required each quarter in line with NHSE 
guidelines.

Alternatives Considered
The operation of a formal pool in 2018/19 is in line with the requirements of 
NHSE and the GM Health and Social Care Partnership and builds on the 
shadow pool that was operated by the ICB in 2017/18, therefore there are no 
alternatives to consider.

Page 65



Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

The changes from the  base budget reported to ICB in April are listed in Table 
1 below;

Table 1

Budget 
£m's

Original Pooled budget 2018/19 377.8
Reduction for BCF contributions -25.3
Local Authority
Budget Carry Forwards 3.7
Reductions against the locality budget gap -1.8
Reduction for budgets going into reserves -1.6
Additional budget for pay awards 0.3
Reduction in budget for variations in employee oncost 
rates -0.4

LA savings reported 2018/19 -0.9

Transformation deflections -0.8
Increase in pool for Emergency Duty Team formerly part of 
aligned budgets 0.3
Total movement in LA pooled budgets -1.2
CCG
Decommissioning Strategy reported to ICB in May -3.2
Contract negotiations reported to ICB in May -0.9
Budget adjustments in month 2 -1.7
Deflections resulting from the transformation programme,  
Prescribing £1m, Acute services £2.8m. -3.8
Prescribing work programme now set outside of the pool 
£0.4m , revision of activity split between Adults , 
Children's and non pooled services £4.5m -4.9
Total movement in CCG pooled budgets -14.5
Revised Pooled Budget at P2 2018/19 336.8

Variations P2 to base budgets

There has been a £4.5m transfer of budgets and associated expenditure 
between the Health pooled budgets and those which cannot be pooled. This is 
in relation to acute activity either, of a specialist nature following the transfer of 
activity back to CCG’s from NHSE, or the increased activity within the 
integrated elective contract for surgical procedures, which cannot be pooled. 
This exercise was unable to be carried out in time for the opening budget 
report because fully populated activity plans were not available for all of the 
acute contracts

Page 66



5.3 The pooled budget in table 2 below still has a funding gap of £3.2m this is a 
change to the position reported to ICB in May (£5.2m) and will continue to be 
updated. The budgets do not include any contributions from reserves being 
held by the partners. Progress on the savings schemes and additional plans to 
bridge the funding gap will be provided to the ICB in regular reports during 
2018/19 and will be discussed by the Finance, Performance and Risk sub 
group at its July meeting.

Table 2

Adult's Services
2018/19 
Budget

2018/19 
Forecast Variance

Period 2 budget position £m's £m's £m's
Management Support and Commissioning 5.1 5.1 0.0
Adults, Older People and Physical Disability 46.4 46.4 0.0
Learning Disability / Mental Health 52.4 52.4 0.0
Acute Health Care 112.2 112.2 0.0
Primary Care - Prescribing 30.1 30.1 0.0
Other Services 2.2 2.2 0.0
Adult Public Health 8.0 8.0 0.0
Total Adult Core Services 256.4 256.4 0.0

Children's Services
Period 2 budget position

Management Support and Commissioning 2.5 2.5 0.0
Children's Early Intervention 5.8 5.8 0.0
Health Community Services 5.8 5.8 0.0
Learning Disability / Mental Health 5.2 5.2 0.0
Special Educational Needs 3.1 3.1 0.0
Acute Health Care 21.8 21.8 0.0
Children 0-19 Public Health 5.0 5.0 0.0

Cared for Children and Safeguarding 22.3 22.3 0.0
Primary Care - Prescribing 8.0 8.0 0.0
Other Services 0.8 0.8 0.0
Total Children's Core Services 80.3 80.3 0.0
Local Transformation Fund 0.1 0.1 0.0
Total Health and Social Care Pooled Budgets 336.8 336.8 0.0

Contributions from partners
CCG 241.8 241.8 0.0
LA 91.8 91.8 0.0
Total Contributions 333.6 333.6 0.0
Revised Gap 3.2 3.2 0.0

Health and Social Care Pooled budget 2018/19

Page 67



5.4

5.5

For information, and to support commissioning decisions, the LA provider 
services financial positions are being reported to ICB. There is a potential 
budget pressure in Children’s Social Care Services for residential placements. 
The Council is currently undertaking further work to understand this pressure 
and to identify mitigating actions. 

There are some aligned services which sit outside of the pooled budget which 
are listed in table 3 below, these are not under the control of the ICB but are 
included here for information, decision making around these budgets remains 
with the LA or CCG.

Table 3

Budget
£000's

Health Protection PH 160
Physical activity PH 631
Smoking PH 33
Other Public health PH 1,201
Link4life PH 2,947
School Improvement CSC 178

School Organisation CSC 203

Schools Personnel CSC 68

Area Special Needs Co Ordinator CSC -14

Education Psychology CSC 401
Youth Offending Team CSC 530
Regional Adoption Agency CSC 1,379
Primary Care CCG 7,038
Acute Services CCG 42,423

Core Running Costs CCG 4,611

Primary Care- Co Commissioning CCG 35,870

Total Aligned Services 97,659

Aligned Services

Service Host

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 The pooled budget has been agreed to be operated in 2018/19 in line with 
the Governments guidance that all LA Adult Care and CCG budgets should 
be pooled by 2020/21 to support the integration of Health and Social Care. 
Section 75 of the National Health Service 2006 Act gives powers to local 
authorities and health bodies to establish and maintain pooled funds out of 
which payment may be made towards expenditure incurred in the exercise of 

Page 68



prescribed LA functions and prescribed NHS functions.

Consultation

7.1 There is no requirement for consultation on the contents of this report other 
than with the partners i.e. the CCG and the LA. Relevant officers from both 
organisations have been consulted on the content of this report.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 LA Monitoring working papers

CCG Monitoring working papers

Number 1 Riverside

Number 1 Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Tim Buckley

tim.buckley@rochdale.gov.uk

01706 925252 

Page 69


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	7 Decommissioning Strategy
	Decommissioning Strategy - appendix

	8 Update on Communications and engagement activities to support the transformation programme
	ICB Communications and Engagement Update - June 2018
	UPDATED draft 3 Rochdale Transformation CE Plan JUNE 2018

	9 Transformation Programme - Highlights Report
	12 Health and Social Care Pool Budget Report - Period 2 (May)  2018/19



